
Board of Aldermen Mee�ng 

Agenda Packet 

November 14, 2023 



1 | P a g e  
 

 Greg Parker, Mayor 
Shawn Bolerjack, East Ward Alderman 

  Kala Sisco, East Ward Alderman 
Kyle Williams, West Ward Alderman 

Amanda Duncan, West Ward Alderman 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 

202 N. Washington 
October 24, 2023 

 
Call Meeting to Order 
The regular season meeting of the Board of Alderman of the City of Salem, Missouri, was called to order by 
Mayor Greg Parker at 6:00 p.m.    
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Greg Parker. 
 
Opening Prayer 
Opening prayer was led by Public Works Director Mark Nash. 
 
Roll Call 
Council Members present included Kala Sisco, Shawn Bolerjack, Kyle Williams, and Amanda Duncan.  Others in 
attendance were:  City Administrator Sally Burbridge, City Clerk Tammy Koller, Chief of Police Joe Chase, Public 
Works Director Mark Nash, and Finance Director Stacey Houston. 
Citizens in attendance were: Mary Ann Curley, Debbie Murphy, David Weiss, Richard Labrash, Marilyn 
Sweitzer, Patti McKeon, Sue Woods, Bob Gravely, Stan Podorski, Susan Mackey, and Nancy Major. 
 
Approve Agenda 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve the agenda. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, Sisco, and Duncan. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. 
 
Consent Agenda  
October 10, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes 
September 13, 2023, Utility Committee Meeting Minutes 
Mo Dept. of Rev. C.A.R.T. Tax October 2023-$20,485.54 
Dent County Transportation Meeting-October 16, 2023 
 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 4 Aye- Bolerjack, Williams, Sisco, and Duncan.  0 Nay. Motion carried. 
 
Hearing of Persons 
No Hearing of Persons this agenda. 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
New and Miscellaneous Business 
Salt Storage Building Bid Approval 
Alderwoman Sisco moved to approve the bid for materials and concrete for $9,604.09.  
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Sisco, Bolerjack, Williams, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Rock for Street Maintenance Bid Approval 
Alderman Williams moved to approve the bid from Capital Quarries for $10,000.00. 
Seconded by Alderwoman Duncan. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Williams, Duncan, Sisco, and Bolerjack.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Request for Utilities  
Alderman Williams moved to deny providing water and sewer service to 1413 West Franklin.  
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Wiliams, Bolerjack, Sisco, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Legislative Priorities  
Alderman Williams moved to approve the 2023-2024 slate of Missouri State Legislative Priorities. 
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Williams, Bolerjack, Sisco, and Duncan. 0 Nay. Motion carried. 
 
Financial Update 
Finance Director Stacey Houston states collected sales tax for October is up 12% from September but 2.5% 
lower than October last year. Year to date revenues through October for the General Fund is $502,000, Parks 
and Recreation $188,000, and Capital Improvements $251,000.  Utility usage though September: Electric 
Kilowatt hours sold was a little over 14 million with electric revenues billed at a little over 2 million, purchase 
of power paid is $1.2 million, water consumption sold is 33 million gallons with revenues billed around 
$214,000, sewer consumption sold is 29.8 million gallons with revenues billed at $281,000. 
 
Cyber Security Grant Program-Letter of Commitment 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve the Cyber Security Grant Program-Letter of Commitment.  
Seconded by Alderwoman Sisco. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Bolerjack, Sisco, Williams, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Board Appointments 
Parks and Recreation-Luke Heithold 
Community Service-Kristy Rushing, Patty McKeon, and Gary McKeon. 
Utility Committee-Catharina Pot 
Alderwoman Sisco moved to approve the mayor’s recommended appointments. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Sisco, Williams, Bolerjack, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

 
Old Business 
Request for Utilities-103 S. Dilworth  
Alderman Williams moved to deny the request for utilities at 103 S. Dilworth. 
Seconded by Alderwoman Duncan. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Williams, Duncan, Bolerjack, and Sisco.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
 
Bill No. 3564-An ordinance to rezone 1203 Babb Lane as described in Exhibit “A” in the City of Salem, 
Missouri from Commercial to Manufacturing/Industrial, owner Sellers Investment Properties. 
City Clerk Koller read the fourth reading of Bill No. 3564 by caption only. 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve Bill No. 3564. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  1 Abstain-Sisco. 
 
Bill No. 3566-An ordinance to rezone 1209 Babb Lane as described in Exhibit “A” in the City of Salem, 
Missouri from Commercial to Manufacturing/Industrial, owner Sellers Investment Properties. 
City Clerk Koller read the fourth reading of Bill No. 3566 by caption only. 
Alderman Williams moved to approve Bill No. 3566. 
Seconded by Alderman Bolerjack. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Williams, Bolerjack, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  1 Abstain-Sisco.  
 
Bill No. 3567-An ordinance to rezone 1301 Babb Lane as described in Exhibit “A” in the City of Salem, 
Missouri from Commercial to Manufacturing/Industrial, owner David Gray, Jr. 
City Clerk Koller read the fourth reading of Bill No. 3567 by caption only. 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve Bill No. 3567. 
Seconded by Alderwoman Duncan. 
The vote was 3 Aye-Bolerjack, Duncan, and Williams.  0 Nay.  1 Abstain-Sisco.  
 
Reading of Bills (First Reading) 
Bill No. 3575-An ordinance to authorize the mayor to sign the administrative procedures guide for 
floodplain management and flood hazard reduction for the City of Salem, Missouri. 
City Clerk Koller read the first reading of Bill No. 3575 by caption only. 
 
Reading of Bills (Second Reading) 
Bill No. 3574- An ordinance amending the city administrator duties for the City of Salem, Missouri. 
City Clerk Koller read the second reading of Bill No. 3574 by caption only. 
Alderman Bolerjack moved to approve Bill No. 3574. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Bolerjack, Williams, Sisco, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  Bill No. 3574 passed as Ordinance No. 
3574. 
 
Reports of City Officials, Boards and Committees 



4 | P a g e  
 

City Administrator Sally Burbridge reported Archer Elgin expects to submit the final bid documents by the end 
of this week for the Downtown Project.  They anticipate it will take about two weeks for MoDot to review 
those documents.  If goes as planned, we should be advertising for bids the week of the next Aldermen 
Meeting. 
 
Mayor Greg Parker reported since the inaugural run in 2016, the Honoring our Heroes Marathon event has 
raised nearly $100,000 for local veteran’s causes across Missouri’s Dent, Phelps, and Pulaski counties, 
including: AUSA’s Warrior in Need Fund, Dent County Veteran’s Emergency Fund, VFW Veteran’s Emergency 
Fund, the Woody Willliams Foundation, Missouri Patriot Paws of Rolla, the American Volunteers, the Army 
Emergency Relief Fund of Fort Leonard Wood, Veterans Memorial Park in Rolla, and more.  Mayor Parker 
presented a Proclamation Honoring Our Heroes Marathon Day to Marilyn Sweitzer and Richard Labrash. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported Sho-me Power will be working on the substation repairs from 
Midnight to 1:00 AM. The damage was caused by a squirrel earlier in the week. Some have asked why the 
substation is not enclosed.  Nash states everything on substations that can be closed in, is. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported work has begun on electrical work on the Construction Trades 
Building.  Electrical work will begin November 1st at Al Brown Fields.  
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported the meters for the three services with solar panels have been 
reprogramed so the individuals can see received, delivered, and net on the meters. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported he will meet with the boring company tomorrow morning to 
discuss the area at 8th Street and Hwy 19 regarding the water leak.   
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported some of the runway lights are dark.  They are unsure if it is the 
lightbulbs or the transformers.  Electric Department Supervisor Josh Kotschedoff will be looking into this to 
ensure the runway lights are working properly. 
 
Public Works Director Mark Nash reported utility disconnects for the August 15 through September 15 billing 
cycle will be on October 30.  
 
Alderwoman Kala Sisco reported there will be a finance committee meeting on November 9, at 6 PM in the 
rotary room at the Armory.  
 
Alderwoman Kala Sisco would like to do a workshop for a mission statement.  Alderwoman Sisco has a few 
examples of mission statements but wants to draft a statement that represents the goals and values of Salem. 
 
Alderwoman Kala Sisco wants to begin working on a non-smoking policy, especially for the sports fields. Sisco 
states it is extremely difficult to be on the field coaching with someone smoking next to her.  She can only 
imagine what it is like for children playing in those fields, especially if someone has asthma. 
Alderwoman Kala Sisco reported city league basketball sign-ups have begun.   
 



5 | P a g e  
 

Alderwoman Kala Sisco reported Healthy Dent County will be hosting Casino Night November 4th, the last day 
to sign up is November 3rd.   
 
Alderwoman Kala Sisco thanked the Police Department for their quick response after the ATM thefts this 
week. 
 
Alderman Shawn Bolerjack shared Salem has been chosen 2023 community of the year by the Missouri 
Community Betterment Association.  Alderman Bolerjack thanked the Salem Area Betterment Association and 
our community for their dedication and hard work in achieving this honor.  This recognition is a testament to 
our collective effort to make Salem a better place to live. 
 
Alderman Shawn Bolerjack thanked SACBA for their vision and fund-raising efforts for the new Current River 
Mural at the Ozark Natural Cultural Resource Center. Alderman Bolerjack also recognized the talented artist of 
that mural. 
 
Alderman Shawn Bolerjack reported the Heroes Marathon will be November 18.  Anyone wishing to volunteer 
or participate may go on the Heroes Marathon Website to obtain needed information. 
 
Alderman Shawn Bolerjack asked that everyone be aware of children treat-or-treating next week for 
Halloween. 
 
Alderman Kyle Williams had nothing to report. 
 
Alderwoman Amanda Duncan had nothing to report. 
 
Closed Session 
Pursuant to Section 610.021(3) of the Revised State Statutes of the State of Missouri pertaining to the 
hiring, firing, disciplining, or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when 
personal information about the employee is discussed or recorded. 
 
Pursuant to Section 610.021(12) of the Revised State Statutes of the State of Missouri pertaining to sealed 
proposals and related documents or any documents related to a negotiated contract until a contract is 
executed, or all proposals are rejected. 
 
Alderwoman Sisco moved to go into closed session for personnel and contracts. 
Seconded by Alderman Williams. 
The vote was 4 Aye-Sisco, Williams, Bolerjack, and Duncan.  0 Nay.  Motion carried. 
The Board went into closed session at 6:56 PM. 
No action was taken. 
 
Adjournment 
Mayor Greg Parker adjourned the meeting at 7:51 p.m. 
 



6 | P a g e  
 

______________________________                 
Tammy Koller 
City Koller 
                                                                                                                                         
APPROVED: 
_________________________________ 
Greg Parker 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Tammy Koller  
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
October 24, 2023, Aldermen Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 
   

City of Salem Alderman Report 

October 31st, 2023 

Melisa DuBois, Parks and Recreation Director 

 

Youth Sports and Programs 

o 2023 Flag Football 

• We totaled 155 athletes for the 2023 season. 

 

• Our numbers were down by just a few, but we had enough 5th/6th grade to have 

two teams for the first time in several years. 

 

o 2023-2024 Basketball/Cheer 

• Registration is open now for all 1st -6th grade students, this includes homeschool. 

• October 12th – Nov 6th, additional $10 late fee until November 13th. 

• Coaches draft is scheduled for November 22nd, with practices to follow starting 

December 1st, games to be played in January 2024.  Practices and games will be 

in the Salem Community Center @the Armory gym. 

o Skills and Drills 

• Skills and Drills three day after school camp for football will be February 2024, 

more information coming soon! 

 

43
0

39 39
49

38

57

0

49
65 71

56

0 0 160 0

53
41 43 45

100

0

141 145

163
155

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Flag Football

1st/2nd 3rd/4th 5th/6th Cheerleading2 Total Participants



 
 

 

Grounds and Satellite Parks 

o Al Brown lighting project 

• Update: Poles and lighting installation complete.  Waiting for a piece of 

equipment to be available.  Could take several months to become available. 

• We have a contractor contract ready to install electric lines to poles. 

 

o Civic Theater 

• Update: Scott and I have not had a chance to meet up, but he did tell me he 

purchased a large popcorn popper for the Civic Theater and would like to donate 

it to the project.  

I reached out to Scott Hubbard last week to see what needs to be completed for 

us to move the project forward.  He is currently out of the state and will be 

meeting with me when he returns. 

o Salem City Park 

• The restrooms and concession stand located at the park ball fields have been 

winterized.  The restrooms located at the park will be winterized before the next 

cold front moves though.  We try to keep them open as long as possible. 

• The rubber handicap swing located on the rubber chip swing set has been 

removed due to continued vandalism.  It will be replaced with a toddler swing, 

along with repair to the broken swings.  We still have handicap swings available 

on Billy’s Playground that are safer and better accessible.   

• The steps to the press box located on the blue field have been replaced.  A big 

Thank you to the Salem Tiger Softball Booster club for donating the supplies and 

to the City of Salem Construction crew for building the new steps. 

 

o Al Brown 

• The multipurpose field developed a large sink hole in the middle of the field from 

an overflow branch from the creek.  It was significant in size.  Thank you to Don 

Smith for coming up with a game plan to repair and reseed, also, to the Street 

department for bringing dirt fill and equipment for the repair. 

  

 



 
 

 

Other Parks and Recreation Business 

o Splash Pad 

• The Splash Pad is officially closed for the season.  See you back in the late Spring. 

o Light Up the Park 2023 

• Display spots are open to business, churches, clubs, organized groups, and 

individuals.  $50 reservation fee covers reservation and electricity. Please email 

salemparks@salemmo.com if you are interested. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:salemparks@salemmo.com






RESOLUTION NO. 24-2022 
 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE MUNICIPAL ELECTION FOR THE CITY 
OF SALEM, MISSOURI, ON APRIL 2, 2024. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, 
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Missouri and the ordinances of the City of Salem, 
Missouri, provide that a municipal election for the elective officers of each city of the 
fourth class shall be held on the first Tuesday in April each year and provide for certain 
duties of the Board of Aldermen and City Clerk regarding said election, and 
 
WHEREAS, said election will be held on April 2, 2024. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF 
THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The purpose of the April 2, 2024, election is to elect: 
 

(a) One (1) Alderman from the West Ward of said City to serve a two-year term 
until April, 2026; 

 
(b) One (1) Alderman from the East Ward of said City to serve a two-year term 

until April, 2026; 
 
(c) One (1) Mayor of said City to serve a two-year term until April 2026. 
 

 Or until their successors in such offices are duly elected, appointed, qualified and 
installed in office. 

 
2. Any qualified person who desires to be a candidate for the above city offices may 

have his name placed upon the ballot by filing his written declaration of such 
candidacy for the office which he seeks in the Office of the City Clerk.  The 
opening filing date is 8:00 a.m. on December 5, 2023, and the closing date is 5:00 
p.m. on December 26, 2023. 

 
3. The City Clerk shall cause notice of the opening filing date, the office or offices 

to be filled, the proper place for filing and the closing filing date of the election, 
such notice to be published in the Salem News. 
 

4. Said election will be held at the following voting places in said City, to wit: 
 

     



   WEST WARD City Hall 
     202 North Washington Street 
    EAST WARD Dent County Fire Protection District 
     #2 South Main Street 
 
  And the polls shall be opened at six o’clock in the morning and shall remain 

continuously open until seven o’clock in the evening. 
 

5. Said election shall be held under the provisions of Chapter 115 RSMo. 
 

6. All duties specified in the state election laws, unless otherwise specified, to be 
performed by the officer or agency calling the election and all duties specified in 
the state election laws, unless otherwise specified, to be performed by the City 
shall be performed by the City Clerk. 
 

7. This Resolution shall take effect from and after the passage and adoption thereof. 
 
 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, 
MISSOURI, AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 14th DAY OF 
NOVEMBER 2023. 
 
 
APPROVED:                                  ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________                    ________________________________ 
Greg Parker                                 Tammy Koller 
Mayor                                   City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________  
James K. Weber 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 



Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 November 14, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

AGENDA TITLE: Resolution No. 25-2023 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Economic Development 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve Change Order for 503 E Rolla Rd – Welcome Home 

SUMMARY BY: Missy Canaday 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

The contract for rehabilitation work at 503 E Rolla Rd as part of the Welcome Home 2021, 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) project was approved on October 11, 2022, in the amount of 
$22,000.00. This Change Order request was initiated by the homeowner and is a decrease to 
the contract amount of $400.00, bringing the total amount to $21,600.00. 

Changes in the scope of work of the contract: Owner will prime and paint instead of Contractor – 
this is specific to the Siding portion of the Scope of Work for $7,000. 
 
PROCUREMENT 

  
N/A 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

With this change order, the total amount for rehabilitation activities for this home is reduced by 
$400.00.  
 
 

SUPPORT DOCUMENTS:  Original Contract including Bid Sheet with Scope of Work 
Change Order #1 for 503 E Rolla Rd., Salem FHLB Welcome 
Home Grant Program 

DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to Approve Change Order #1 for 503 E 
Rolla Rd., a participant in the Welcome Home 2021 program.  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 25-2023 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE CONTRACT CHANGE 
ORDER NO. 1 BETWEEN WELCH CONSTRUCTION (THE “CONTRACTOR”), THE CITY 
OF SALEM, MISSOURI (THE “CITY”), AND DANIEL EVANS (THE “OWNER”) OF 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 503 W. ROLLA RD, SALEM, MISSOURI. 
 
WHEREAS, the contract for rehabilitation work at 501 S. Hickory Street as part of the Welcome 
Home 2021, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) project was entered into September 27, 2022, for 
the amount of $18,528.00. 
 
WHEREAS, the owner has requested a decrease to the contract in the amount of $400.00. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY 
OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. 
 
 The Agreement made and entered into this day, in consideration of agreements contained 
herein, the undersigned Contractor, Owner, and City agree to all provisions as set forth in Exhibit 
A attached hereto. 
 
Section 2.  
 
 The contract total amount including this change is $21,600.00.  
 
Section 3. 

 
This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and approval. 

 
  
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AND 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR, THIS 14th   DAY OF NOVEMBER 2023. 
 
APPROVED: ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________ 
Greg Parker Tammy Koller 
Mayor City Clerk 
 
 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  _______________________________ 
 James K. Weber 
 City Attorney 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 





 1 

REHABILITATION CONTRACT 
For The 

FHLB (Welcome Home) Housing Program 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 11th day of October 2022, by and between 
Welch Construction, hereinafter called the "Contractor", and Daniel Evans, hereinafter called 
the "Owner” of property located at 503 E. Rolla Rd, Salem, MO, and the City of Salem 
hereinafter called the “City”.  In consideration of the mutual promises and agreements contained 
herein, the undersigned Contractor, Owner, and City agree as follows: 
 
I. The Contractor shall comply with the following provisions: 
 
 (1) Labor, Materials, and Work Write-up: 
 

Furnish all labor, materials, supervision and services necessary to do the work 
specified in the "Work Write-up" (Attachment A) and made a part hereof for the 
total sum of $22,000.00.  

 
 (2) Notice to Proceed and Date of Completion: 
 

Not begin the work to be performed until receipt of written Notice to Proceed, 
after which the Contractor shall complete said work within the number of days 
specified on the Notice to Proceed. 
 

 (3) Specifications, Codes and Regulations: 
 

Comply with all appropriate specifications and codes referred to and with all 
regulations, ordinances, and laws of the City, the County, the State of Missouri, 
and the Federal Government, and permit reasonable inspection of all work by 
authorized inspectors, and perform the work diligently, in a workmanship manner, 
using the materials specified. 

 
 (4) Insurance: 
 
  A. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect  
  him from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from the   
  Contractor's execution of the Work, whether such execution be by himself   
  or by any Subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by   
  any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable: 
 

1. Claims under workmen’s compensation, disability benefit and 
other similar employee benefit acts; 

2. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational 
sickness or diseases, or death of his employees; 

 



 2 

   3. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease,  
    or death of any person other than his employees; 
 
   4. Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability  
    coverage which are sustained (1) by any person as a result of an  
    offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such  
    person by the Contractor, or (2) by any other person; and 
 
   5. Claims for damages because of injury to or destruction of tangible  
    property, including loss of use resulting therefrom; 
 
   6. Bodily injury insurance shall be in the amount of $100,000. 
 

B. Certificates of Insurance shall be filed with the Administrator (City’s 
Economic Development office) prior to commencement of the work.  These 
Certificates shall contain a provision of coverages afforded under the policies will 
not be canceled unless at least fifteen (15) days prior Written Notice has been 
given to the Administrator. 

 
C. The Contractor shall procure and maintain, at his own expense, during the 
Contract Time, commercial liability insurance in the amount of $150,000. 

 
  D. The Contractor shall procure and maintain at his own expense, during the  

Contract Time, in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the state in which 
the work in performed, Workmen’s Compensation insurance, including 
occupational disease provisions, for all of his employees at the site of the project 
and in case any work is sublet, the Contractor shall require such Subcontractor 
similarly to provide Workmen’s Compensation insurance, including occupational 
disease provisions for all of the latter’s employees unless such employees are 
covered by the protection afforded by the Contractor. In case any class of 
employees engaged in hazardous work under this Contract at the site of the 
project is not protected under Workmen’s Compensation statute, the Contractor 
shall provide, and shall cause each Subcontractor to provide, adequate and 
suitable insurance for the protection of his employees not otherwise protected. 

  
(5) Permits and Licenses: 

 
  Obtain and pay for all permits and licenses necessary for the completion and  
  execution of the work and labor to be performed. 
 
 (6) Debris and Material Removal: 
 

Keep the premises clean and orderly during the course of the work and remove all 
debris as it accumulates.  Materials and equipment that have been removed and 
replaced as part of the work shall belong to the Contractor, unless the Owner 
stipulates their intent to retain certain material or equipment.  Any material or 



 3 

equipment retained by the Owner shall not be stored outside or in a manner that 
detracts from the neighborhood. 

 
 (7) Assignments and Subcontracts: 
 

Not assign the contract or subcontract any portion of this contract without 
notification to the Project Administrator.  The notification must be addressed to 
the Project Administrator, Economic Development, 400 N. Iron St., City of 
Salem, MO 65560. The General Contractor is responsible for all work carried out 
by any subcontractor.      

 
 (8) Subcontracts to City Officials and Employees: 
 

Shall not subcontract any part of the work to be performed under this contract to 
any officer, or employee of the City of Salem, or their designees or agents, no 
member of the governing body of said city, and no other official of such locality 
who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the City, giving 
rise to this contract during his or her tenure or for one year thereafter. 

 
 (9) Guaranty: 
 

The Contractor shall guarantee all materials and equipment furnished and work 
performed for a period of one (1) year from the date of Final Completion.  The 
Contractor warrants and guarantees for a period of one (1) year from the date of 
Final Completion of the system that the completed system is free from all defects 
due to faulty materials or workmanship and the Contractor shall promptly make 
such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such defects including the 
repairs of any damages to other parts of the system resulting from such defects.  
The Owner will give written notice to the Contractor (copy to Administrator) of 
observed defects with reasonable promptness.  In the event that the Contractor 
should fail to make such repairs, adjustments, or other work that may be made 
necessary by such defects, within 30 days of written notice, the Owner may do so 
and charge the Contractor the cost thereby incurred. 

 
 (10) Correction of Work: 
 

A. The Contractor shall promptly remove from the premises all Work 
rejected by the Administrator or Owner for failure to comply with the Contract 
Documents, whether incorporated in the construction or not, and the Contractor 
shall promptly replace and re-execute the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and without expense to the Owner and shall bear the expense of 
making good all Work of other Contractors destroyed or damaged by such 
removal or replacement.   

 
B.  All removal and replacement Work shall be done at the Contractor's 
expense.  If the Contractor does not take action to remove and repair such rejected 



 4 

Work within ten (10) days after receipt of Written Notice, the Owner may remove 
and repair such Work at the expense of the Contractor. 

 
 (11) Suspension of Work, Termination and Delay: 
 

A. The Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of 
not more than ninety days or such further time as agreed upon by the Contractor, 
by Written Notice to the Contractor, which notice shall fix the date on which 
Work shall be resumed.  The Contractor will resume that Work on the date so 
fixed.  The Contractor will be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an 
extension of the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to any suspension. 

 
B. If the Contractor is adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent, or if he makes a 
general assignment for the benefit of his creditors, or if a trustee or receiver is 
appointed for the Contractor or for any of his property, or if he files a petition to 
take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the bankruptcy or 
applicable laws, or if he repeatedly fails to supply sufficient skilled workmen or 
suitable materials or equipment, or if he repeatedly fails to make prompt 
payments to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or equipment or if he 
disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public body having 
jurisdiction of the Work or if he disregards the authority of the Owner or City, or 
if the work does not pass inspection by the Project Inspector, or if he otherwise 
violates any provision of the Contract Documents, then the City may, without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy and after giving the Contractor and his 
surety a minimum of ten (10) days from delivery of a Written Notice, terminate 
the services of the Contractor and take possession of the Project and of all 
materials, and finish the Work by whatever method he may deem expedient.  In 
such case the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until 
the Work is finished.  If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds the 
direct and indirect costs of completing the Project, including compensation for 
indirect costs of completing the project, including compensation for additional 
professional services, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor.  If such costs 
exceed such unpaid balance, the Contractor will pay the difference to the Owner 
or City.  Such costs incurred by the Owner or City will be determined by the 
Project Administrator and incorporated in a change order. 

 
C. Where the Contractor's services have been so terminated by the Owner or 
City, said termination shall not affect any right of the Owner or City against the 
Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue.  Any retention or 
payment of moneys by the City due the Contractor will not release the Contractor 
from compliance with the Contract Documents, such as guarantees, workmanship, 
etc. 

 
D. After ten (10) days from delivery of a Written Notice to the Contractor, 
the Owner may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, 
elect to abandon the Project and terminate the Contract.  In such case, the 



 5 

Contractor shall be paid for all Work executed and any expense sustained plus 
reasonable profit. 

 
E. If, through no act or fault of the Contractor, the Work is suspended for a 
period of more than ninety (90) days by the City or under an order of court or 
other public authority, or the City fails to act on any request for payment within 
thirty (30) days after it is submitted, or the City fails to pay the sum awarded by 
arbitrators within thirty (30) days of its approval and presentation, then the 
Contractor may, after ten (10) days from delivery of Written Notice to the Owner 
and City, terminate the Contract and recover from the City payment for all Work 
executed and expenses sustained.  In addition and in lieu of terminating the 
Contract, if the City has failed to act on a request for payment or if the City has 
failed to make any payment as aforesaid, the Contractor may upon ten (10) days 
Written Notice to the Owner and City, stop the Work until he has been paid all 
amounts then due, in which event and upon resumption of the Work, Change 
Orders shall be issued for adjusting the Contract Price or extending the Contract 
Time or both to compensate for the costs and delays attributable to stoppage of 
the Work. 

 
F.  If the performance of all or any portion of the Work is suspended, delayed, 
or interrupted as a result of a failure of the Owner or Administrator to act within 
the time specified in the Contract Documents, or if no time is specified, within a 
reasonable time, an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the 
Contract Time, or both, shall be made by Change Order to compensate the 
Contractor for the costs and delays necessarily caused by the failure of the Owner 
or Administrator. 

 
 (12) Payments to Contractor: 
 

A. Request for funds will be submitted to the Administrator.  The Contractor 
will submit to the Administrator an invoice for the work performed, in addition to 
lien waivers covering all supplies, labor, and/or subcontractors used during the 
project period.  The City will only pay for completion of tasks. 

 
B.  Upon completion and acceptance of the Work, the Project Inspector shall 
issue a certificate attached to the final payment request that the Work has been 
accepted by him under the conditions of the Contract Documents.  The entire 
balance found to be due the Contractor, excluding the lead clearance retainage, 
and except such sums as may be lawfully retained by the City, shall be paid to the 
Contractor within thirty (30) days of completion and acceptance of the Work, if 
the Contractor has provided all required lien releases.   

 
C. The Contractor hereby indemnifies and saves the Owner, the Owner's 
agents, the City, the City’s agents, and Administrator, harmless from all claims 
growing out of the lawful demands of subcontractors, laborers, workmen, 
mechanics, material suppliers, and supplies incurred in the furtherance of the 



 6 

performance of the Work.  The Contractor shall, at the Owner's, City’s, or 
Administrator's request, furnish satisfactory evidence that all obligations of the 
nature designated above have been paid, discharged, or waived.  If the Contractor 
fails to do so, the City may, after having notified the Contractor, either pay unpaid 
bills or withhold from the Contractor's unpaid compensation a sum of money 
deemed reasonably sufficient to pay all such lawful claims until satisfactory 
evidence is furnished that all liabilities have been fully discharged, whereupon 
payment to the Contractor shall be resumed, in accordance with the terms of the 
Contract Documents, but in no event shall the provisions of this sentence be 
construed to impose any obligations upon the Owner or City to either the 
Contractor, his surety, or any third party.  In paying any unpaid bills of the 
Contractor, any payment so made by the City or Owner shall be considered as a 
payment made under the Contract Documents by the City or Owner to the 
Contractor, and the City or Owner shall not be liable to the Contractor for any 
such payments made in good faith. 

 
 (13)  Owner’s Rights 
 

A. Prior to Substantial Completion, the Owner, with the approval of the 
Contractor, may use any completed or substantially completed portions of the 
Work.  Such use shall not constitute an acceptance of such portions of the Work. 
 
B. The Owner shall have the right to enter the premises for the purpose of 
doing work not covered by the Contract Documents.  This provision shall not be 
construed as relieving the Contractor of the sole responsibility for the care and 
protection of the Work, or the restoration of any damaged Work except such as 
may be caused by the Owner, agents or employees of the Owner. 

   
 (14) Acceptance of Final Payment as Release: 
 

The acceptance by the Contractor of final payment shall be and shall operate as a 
release to the Owner and City of all claims and all liability to the Contractor other 
than claims in stated amounts as may be specifically excepted by the Contractor 
for all things done or furnished in connection with this Work and others relating 
to or arising out of this Work.  Any payment, however, final or otherwise, shall 
not release the Contractor or his sureties from any obligations under the Contract 
Documents. 

 
 (15)  Changes in Work: 
 

The Owner or Project Inspector may at any time, as the need arises, order changes 
within the scope of the Work without invalidating the Agreement.  If such 
changes increase or decrease the amount due under the Contract Documents, or in 
the time required for performance of the Work, an equitable adjustment shall be 
authorized by Change Order. The Contractor shall proceed with the performance 
of any changes in the Work so ordered by the Owner or Project Inspector.  The 



 7 

Contractor shall comply with all orders issued by the Owner or Project Inspector 
in relation to carrying out the rehabilitation. 

 
 (16) Changes in Contract Price 
 

The Contract Price may be changed only by a Change Order.  The value of any 
Work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for increase or decrease in the 
Contract Price shall be determined by an agreed lump sum price only. 

   
 (17) Time for Completion and Liquidated Damages: 
 

A. The date of beginning and the time for completion of the Work are 
essential conditions of the Contract Documents and the Work embraced shall be 
commenced on a date specified in the Notice to Proceed.   

 
B. The Contractor will proceed with the Work at such rate of progress to 
insure  full completion within the Contract Time. It is expressly understood and 
agreed, by and between the Contractor and the Owner, that the Contract Time for 
the completion of the Work described herein is a reasonable time, taking into 
consideration the average climatic and economic conditions and other factors 
prevailing in the locality of the Work. 

 
C. If the Contractor shall fail to complete the Work within the Contract Time 
or extension of time granted by the Owner, then the Contractor may be required to 
pay to the City the amount of $100/day for liquidated damage for each calendar 
day that the Contractor shall be in default after the time stipulated in the Contract 
Documents. 

 
D. The Contractor shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any 
excess cost when the delay in completion of the Work is due to the following, and 
the Contractor has promptly given Written Notice of such delay to the Owner and 
Administrator. 

 
   1. To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the  
    Owner. 
 

2. To unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault 
or negligence of the Contractor, including but not restricted to, acts 
of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the Owner, acts of another 
Contractor in the performance of a contract with the Owner, fires, 
floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight 
embargoes, and adverse weather conditions; and 

 
   3. To any delays of Subcontractors occasioned by any of the causes  
    specified in paragraphs 17 D.1. and 17 D.2. of this article. 
 



 8 

(18)  Equal Opportunity  
 
 During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows: 
 

A.  The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, religious affiliation, sex, handicap, 
or national origin.  The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, religious affiliation, sex, age, 
handicap or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following:  Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Administrator setting 
forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

 
B.  The Contractor will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed 
by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, religious 
affiliation, sex, handicap, or national origin. 
 
C.  The Contractor will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 
subcontracts for any work covered by this contract so that such provisions will be 
binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not 
apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

 
D.  The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246, as 
amended by Executive Order 12086 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto, 
and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

 
E.  The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive 
Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 12086, and by the rules, regulations 
and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to 
his books, records, and accounts by the Owner and the Secretary of Labor for 
purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations and 
orders. 

 
F.  In the event of the Contractors non-compliance with the non-compliance 
clause of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this 
Agreement may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the 
Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246, as amended by 
Executive Order 12086, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies 
invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 



 9 

12086, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise 
provided by law. 

 
G.  The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (g) in 
every subcontract unless exempted by rules, regulations or orders of the Secretary 
of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246, as amended 
by Executive Order 12086, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor.  The Contractor will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract as the Owner may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions 
including sanctions for non-compliance:  Provided, however, that in the event the 
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor as a result of such direction by the Owner, the Contractor may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the 
United States. 

 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 

 
Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of 
race, color, sex, religion, religious affiliation, handicap, or national origin, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 
assistance. 

 
Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 

 
No person in the United States shall on the ground of race, color, sex, religion, 
religious affiliation, handicap, or national origin be excluded from participation 
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program 
or activity funded in whole or in part with funds made available under this title. 

 
"Section 3" Compliance in the Provision of Training, Employment and Business 
Opportunities 

 
A.  The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 
program providing direct Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the 
requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as 
amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u.  Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible 
opportunities for training and employment be given lower income residents of the 
project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to 
business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons 
residing in the area of the project. 

 
B.  The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 
and the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of this contract.  The parties 



 10 

to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 
disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
C.  The Contractor will send to each labor organizations or representative of 
workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or 
understanding, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants 
for employment or training. 

 
D.  The Contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for 
work in connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for 
or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the 
subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations 
issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  
The Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or 
knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR 
Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the 
requirements of these regulations. 

 
E.  Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 
CFR Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued 
hereunder prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the federal 
financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or 
recipient for such assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these 
requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and 
subcontractors, its successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant 
or loan agreement or contract through which federal assistance is provided, and to 
such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 

 
No member of the governing body of the locality and no other public official of 
such locality, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with 
the planning and carrying out of this program, shall have any personal financial 
interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract; and the Contractor shall take 
appropriate steps to assure compliance. 

 
The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire 
interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels therein or any other 
interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of 
services hereunder.  The Contractor further covenants that in the performance of 
this Contract, no person having any such interest shall be employed.  

 
(19)  Section 503 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, provides for 

nondiscrimination  in contractor employment. All recipients of Federal funds must 
certify to the following in all contracts issued: 



 11 

 
  Affirmative Action for Handicapped Workers 
 
  (a) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for 
which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The contractor 
agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment and 
otherwise treat qualified handicapped individuals without discrimination based 
upon their physical or mental handicap in all employment practices such as the 
following: Employment upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, 
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection 
for training, including apprenticeship.  

 
(b) The contractor agrees to comply with the rules, regulations, and relevant 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act. 

   
(c) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of 
this clause, actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with the rules, 
regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the 
Act. 

  
 (d) The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to 

employees and applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by 
the Director, provided by or through the contracting officer. Such notices shall 
state the contractor's obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ 
and advance in employment qualified handicapped employees and applicants for 
employment, and the rights of applicants and employees. 

 
  (e) The contractor will notify each labor union or representative of workers 

with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract 
understanding, that the contractor is bound by the terms of Section 503 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and is committed to take affirmative action to employ 
and advance in employment physically and mentally handicapped individuals. 

 
  (f) The contractor will include the provisions of this clause in every 

subcontract or purchase order of $2,500 or more unless exempted by rules, 
regulations, or orders of the Secretary issued pursuant to Section 503 of the Act, 
so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The 
contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontractor or purchase 
order as the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs may 
direct to enforce such provisions, including action for noncompliance. 

 
 (20) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, provides for 

nondiscrimination of an otherwise qualified individual solely on the basis of 
his/her handicap in benefiting from any program or activity receiving Federal 



 12 

financial assistance.  All recipients must certify to compliance with all 
provisions of Section 504. 

 
 (21) Age Discrimination Act of 1975.  No person in the United States shall, on the 

basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 
 (22) Training and Employment of Lower Income Residents of Project Area: 
 

A. The Work to be performed under this contract is subject to the 
requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as 
amended, 12 U.S.C. 170lu.  Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible, 
opportunities for training and employment be given lower income residents of the 
project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to 
business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons 
residing in, the area of the project. 

 
B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 
3 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and 
Urban Development and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued 
thereunder prior to the execution of this contract.  The parties to this contract 
certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability which 
would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
 (23) Special Conditions Pertaining To Hazards Safety Standards  
 
  Lead-Based Paint Hazards 
  

The construction or rehabilitation of residential structures are subject to the HUD 
Lead-Based Paint regulations, 24 CFR Part 35.  The contractor and subcontractor 
shall comply with the provisions for the elimination of lead-base paint hazards 
under sub-part B of said regulations.  The Administrator will be responsible for 
the inspections and certifications required under Section 35.14 (f) thereof.  The 
use of lead-based paint is expressly prohibited. 

 
 Lead Clearance 
  

A.  Contractor is responsible for all construction and clean-up costs needed to 
obtain lead clearance. 

 
 B.  The City will pay costs of initial lead clearance lab fees.  If the lead clearance 

test fails, it will be the Contractors responsibility to pay for all subsequent lab fees 
until clearance is received.  

 
II. The Owner shall: 



 13 

 
(1) Be the only contact in negotiating items of this contract, unless agreed upon by all 

parties of the contract. 
 

(2) Permit the Contractor to use at no cost existing utilities such as light, heat, power, 
and water necessary to the carrying out and completion of work. 

 
(3) Cooperate with the Contractor to facilitate the performance of the Work, 

including the removal and replacement of rugs, coverings, and furnishings as 
necessary. 

  
(4) Understand that some disruptions to the household will occur throughout the 

duration of the project, including noise, debris, dust, etc.  These are normal 
aspects of home rehabilitation work. 

 
(5) The Contractor warrants and guarantees for a period of one (1) year from the date 

of Final Completion of the system that the completed system is free from all 
defects due to faulty materials or workmanship and the Contractor shall promptly 
make such corrections as may be necessary by reason of such defects including 
the repairs of any damages to other parts of the system resulting from such 
defects.  If defects are observed by the Owner during the one year guarantee 
period, the Owner must give written notice to the Contractor (copy to 
Administrator) of observed defects with reasonable promptness. 

 
(6) Abide by the terms of this contract and allow the rehabilitation to be carried out in 

accordance with city codes and federal regulations. 
 
III. General Provisions: 
 

(1) This contract embodies all the representatives, rights, duties, and obligations of 
the parties, and any prior oral or written agreement not embodied herein shall not 
be binding upon or endure to the benefit of any of the parties. 

 
(2) The Contractor agrees to perform the Work required by this contract, and the 

Owner agrees that neither he/she nor the members of his/her family, tenants, 
agents, or employees will hinder the Contractor in his Work or the Project 
Inspector in carrying out project requirements and city codes and policies. 

 
(3) No member, officer, or employee of the Grantee, or its designees or agents, no 

member of the Governing Body of the locality in which the program is situated, 
and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any 
functions or responsibilities with respect to the program during his tenure or for 
one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or 
subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in connection with 
the program assisted under the Agreement. 

 



 14 

 
THIS CONTRACT AND ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN ARE APPROVED 
AND ACCEPTED AS OF THE DATE FIRST WRITTEN. 
 
 
_______________________________                            
Contractor       
 
_________________________________________  ________________   
Signature of Contractor               Date   
 
_______________________________                                  _______________ 
Address       
 
_________________________   
Telephone       
 
 
 
_____________     ____        
Owner       
 
                                                                                .       ___________________ 
Signature                Date 
 
______________________________          
Address 
 
___________________                                                                                       
Telephone 

 
__________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  _____________________ 
Signature of Representative                Date 
 
                                                              ___                           _________ 
Address      Telephone 
 
 
 







Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 11/14/2023 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

AGENDA TITLE: PD Vehicles to be auctioned on Purple Wave. 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Chief Chase 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of two vehicles to be auctioned.  

SUMMARY BY:  

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

The 2018 Dodge Charger, last four of VIN 4580, and the 2017 Ford Explorer, last four of VIN 
7943 are to be rotated from the PD fleet.   
 
 
 
PROCUREMENT 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

Funds from the sale of these vehicles will be deposited in the General Fund line item, sale of  

fixed assets  100-46900.  

 
 

SUPPORT DOCUMENTS:  
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to approve the sale of the 2018 Dodge Charger and the 
2017 Ford Explorer on Purple Wave. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 



Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 11/14/2023 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

AGENDA TITLE: Police Department Buyer Order 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Chief Chase 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of 2023 Dodge Durango 

SUMMARY BY:  

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

Missouri State Statutes (Chapter, 34, Chapter 37 and Chapter 67) authorize Purchasing to 
conduct, and eligible local governments, political subdivisions, and quasi-public governmental 
bodies to participate in, a cooperative purchasing program with the State of Missouri. 

Behlmann Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram  Contract # CC240138001 

                                                                        Contract Type: Statewide Commodity Contracts 

                                                                        Category: Vehicles, Related Supplies & Services 

                                                                        Description: Statewide Motor Vehicles 

                                                                        Contract Period: 09/06/2023-06/30/2024 

 

 
PROCUREMENT 

Buyer Order from Behlmann Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram, 175 Tumbull Trail, Troy, Mo 63379. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

Capital Improvements line item 301-511-71110 with a balance of $39,092.00. 

 
 

SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: Buyer Order from Behlmann Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to approve Buyer Order from Behlmann Chrysler Dodge 
Jeep Ram in the amount of $$36,806.00 
 
 
 
 

 

 





Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 11/14/2023 

AGENDA ITEM:  Vac Truck 

AGENDA TITLE: Discussion of bids for Vac truck 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Public Works Director 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of purchase of Vac Truck 

SUMMARY BY: Mark Nash 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

This vac truck would be utilized by electric, water, sewer, and street dept’s. The street dept. 
could use it when doing excavation in the streets. The amount of area that is disturbed when 
replacing culverts could be less which would allow for less man hours plus less materials for 
replacement. The electric dept. could utilize this equipment to expose u/g utilities when 
replacing poles, plus less area would be disturbed when repairing u/g primary or u/g secondary 
breaks in wires. The water dept has shut-offs that are in operable due to proper maintenance 
not being performed in the past. This machine would allow the water dept. to fix these shut-offs 
with minimal damage to the streets. Proper shut-off maintenance would allow for isolation of the 
main breaks meaning less interruption and less area to repair. It would allow for man holes to be 
cleaned, pump out lift stations when there is an issue with a pump, and do maintenance at the 
WWTF. It will also allow crews to take care of obstructions in our sewer lines and help with flow 
of waste water to WWTF. This machine would allow for more projects to repaired quicker and 
cut down on the amount of materials used to do repairs. 

 

 
PROCUREMENT 

The bid was advertised in the Salem News on October 31, 2023, as well as on the city website.  
The city contacted COE Equipment from Rochester, IL. and Key Equipment from Kansas City, 
Kansas. Bid packets were made available to all interested parties. The City of Salem, Mo. 
received (4) four bids total. Coe Equipment sent (2) two bids: 2008 Vactor for $138,736.11 and 
2013 Vactor for $198,581.06. Did not meet specs sent forth. The city received (1) one bid from 
Key Equipment for $195,487.50. and (1) bid from COE Equipment for $165,250.00. The truck 
from Key Equipment is a better fit for our needs and meets all of our specs. If we purchase the 
truck from COE Equipment changes still need to be made to the truck to fit our needs. Each one 
of the Dept. heads and the mechanic agree that the truck from Key Equipment is the best for 
our needs. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 

The street dept. line item CAP IMPROVEMENT301-508-70855 for $47,500.00. The electric 

dept. 503-501-70855 for $47,500.00. The water dept. 512-501-70855 for $47,500.00. And the 

sewer dept. 522-501-70855 for $47,500.0. These add up to $190.000.00 which is the budgeted 



amount for the Vac Truck. The remainder of the amount of  $5,487.50 would come out of prior 

years fund balance 

 
 

SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: Key Equipment Bid                                 $195,487.50 
COE Equipment 2013Vactor2110+        $165,250.00 
COE Equipment 2013Vactor2112-J6-+  $198,581.06         
COE Equipment 2103-16                        $138,736.11 

Ask The Board of Alderman to accept the bid from Key Equipment for $195,487.50. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 









































































































































Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                                 November 14, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Bids 

AGENDA TITLE: Copier for Administration Building Bids 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   City Administrator 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve/Deny Bids for Copier for Administration Building 

SUMMARY BY: Sally Burbridge 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

The Kyocera Ecosys FS-c8525MFP copier/scanner/fax machine at the Administration Building prints 
color or PDF documents with shadow printing as shown in the attached image. This leaves staff with 
only being able to utilize the smaller desktop printers/copiers for color printing/copying. The purpose of 
a larger multifunction machine is that when printing large numbers of copies, copying is supposed to be 
cheaper and faster than using desktop units.  

PROCUREMENT 

 Three companies were contacted to provide quotes/bids for a new copier: Lakeland Office Systems out 
of West Plains, GFI Digital out of Jefferson City and SumnerOne out of Springfield/ St. Roberts. 
The following information was sent to all 3 companies relating to our needs and current machine:  
 We currently have a Kyocera Ecosys FS-C8525MFP that was purchased in July of 2017 and 
included a Fax System, an additional paper drawer and an Ext Finisher. The company we purchased it 
from and that previously did maintenance on the machine closed October 2022. 
We are looking for a new partner who would be able to provide pricing for the lease of a new machine 
with a service/maintenance contract. 
The Keyocera we have will not stay in alignment for color print/copy jobs – PDF documents seem to be 
the culprit and we deal in those type of documents every day. 
We also need a faster speed than the 25 CPM and more memory than the 1.5 GB RAM as we cannot 
scan in larger finance reports to make copies for boards and committee members. 
Since 2017 we have averaged 34,000 copies/year, but I expect that number will be considerably higher 
as the previous administrator would have the printing of large reports for boards and committees 
printed elsewhere. As an example, our budget document, probably the largest doc we print in a year 
was 167 pages this year and we needed 5 copies for committee members – this was a struggle as we 
had to break the document into multiple sections, and it took multiple days to copy. 
Also new will be the printing of both color and b/w flyers for all of our sports recreational programs for 
our Parks Department. We offer recreational baseball/softball, soccer, basketball, football – there really 
isn’t a time of year when we don’t have a recreational sports program running. 
Collating and stapling should be included. 
The City of Salem is also a member of the Missouri state cooperative purchasing program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The bids/quotes received are attached and a side-by-side comparison is in the below table: 

Brand Canon Kyocera Kyocera Kyocera Sharp Sharp   

Series DX C5840i 3554ci 4054ci 5054ci BP 50C36 BP 50C45   

Memory 5GB 4GB 4GB 4GB       

Hard Drive 256 (1 TB opt) 320 320 320       

PPI 40 35 40 50 36 45   

Maint Agree Per Month $35  $26.40  $26.40  $26.40        

B/W Copies 5000 3000 3000 3000  **  **   

Price for over per copy $0.007 $0.0088 $0.0088 $0.0088 $ 0.008 $0.008   

Color print per sheet $0.042 $0.049 $0.049 $0.049 $ 0.0575  $0.0575   

Scan Speed 270 ipm   274 ipm 274 ipm       

Staple Finish Options * Yes   Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes   

Response Time 

Avg time <4 hrs -  
Techs receive 
bonus if machine 
does not break 
down    

4 hrs or 
$50 
account 
credit 

4 hrs or 
$50 
account 
credit 

 

                

Purchase Price $6,020.09  $6,012.87  $7,098.87  $7,503.87        

Separate Maint Agree 
(60 Month) $2,100  $1,584  $1,584  $1,584   **$1,440   **$1,440 

  

Purchase plus Maint 
agreement for 60 
months $8,120.09 $7,596.87 $8,682.87 $9,087.87   

 

Lease Option (60 Month 
$162.26) 
machine/maint/supplies $9,735.60        

 $6,453 
**$7,893 

 $6,915.60 
**8,355.60 

  

*Staples not included in supply and maintenance plans. Sold separately. 
** B/w copies not included in Monthly supply/maintenance plan – this adds cost back in. 
 
Slow response time when asked questions is the main reason for staff not recommending the Sharp 
machines from GFI Digital. The machine staff recommends is for the copy speed, the fact that the PD 
has a machine through this same company and that the cost spread for this machine to the lowest cost 
machine is less than $1,500 over 5 years. 

FISCAL IMPACTS 

This item was budgeted for in the Non-Departmental Capital Improvements for a Network 
Copier/Scanner for $10,000. 

SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: Bids:  

• Lakeland Office Systems – 1 quote for a Canon DX C5840i 

• SumnerOne – 3 bids for Kyocera Task Alfa: 
o 3554CI,  
o 5054CI 
o 4054CI 

• GFI Digital – 2 bids for a Sharp 
o BP 50C36 
o BP 50C45 

DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move approval of the Copier Bid from 
SumnerOne for the Kyocera 5054ci at a purchase cost of $7,503.87 With a 5 year 
Maintenance and Supplies contract for $1,584 annually. 

 



Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                        November 14, 2023, 6:00 PM 

AGENDA ITEM:  New and Miscellaneous Business 

ANGENDA TITLE:                    Planning & Zoning Commission-Conditional Use Permit-1509 
S. Louise 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Planning and Zoning Commission 

ACTION REQUESTED: Reject Conditional Use Permit for 1509 S. Louise 

SUMMARY BY: Jarred Brown – Building Inspector 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

 
On October 18, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing regarding a 
request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow operation of a motorcycle detail shop at 1509 S. 
Louise.  After closing the public hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted to table 
the vote on the Conditional Use Permit until the following meeting. 
 
On November 7, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6-1 to deny 
recommendation of the Conditional Use Permit.  
 
Section 405.060 of the Salem City Code of Ordinances lists the procedure to apply for a 
Conditional Use, as well as requirements necessary for approval by the Board of Aldermen.   
 

Subsection A seems to indicate that a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission is necessary for Board of Aldermen to approve or deny the Conditional Use 
Permit Application. 

 
DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDED MOTION:  
 

Move to accept the recommendation of the Planning Zoning Commission to deny 
the Conditional Use.  





Staff Summary Report 
 

MEETING DATE:                                        November 14, 2023, 6:00 PM 

AGENDA ITEM:  Reading of Bills (First Reading) 

ANGENDA TITLE:                    Bill No. 3578 

ACTION REQUESTED BY:   Building Inspector 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve Street Names 

SUMMARY BY: Jarred Brown – Building Inspector 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION / FACTS 

 
The names of the streets in the Master’s Industrial Park do not exist on any official document or 
plat.  Because of this, there has been some ambiguity as to the proper addresses for the 
various businesses located there, causing delivery and digital mapping issues. The purpose of 
this ordinance is to create an official record of the approved street names. 
 
DEPARTMENT’S RECOMMENDED MOTION:  
 
Move to approve Bill No. 3578 



BILL NO. 3578                                                                             ORDINANCE NO. 3578 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO NAME STREETS IN THE MASTERS INDUSTRIAL PARK IN THE CITY OF 
SALEM, MISSOURI. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: 
 
That the names of the streets are listed on the map as ‘Attachment A” and as follows: 
 
 Street running West to East-Pines Industrial Drive. 
 
 Streets running North to South-Carnett Industrial Drive and Mullnack Industrial Drive 
 
Section 2: 
 
All Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3: 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and 
approval. 
 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AND 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR, THIS 28th DAY OF NOVEMBER 2023. 
 
 
APPROVED:     ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  __________________________________ 
Greg Parker     Tammy Koller 
Mayor      City Clerk 
 
 
                                                                      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                                                                      __________________________________  
                                                                      James Weber 
      City Attorney 
   





BILL NO. 3575 ORDINANCE NO. 3575 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
PROCEDURES GUIDE FOR FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND FLOOD HAZARD 
REDUCTION FOR THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. 

 
The City of Salem, Missouri Floodplain Manager has developed this guide to establish the 

procedures for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program. All permits shall follow 
the policies and procedures set forth in this guide to ensure that all structures in Salem are 
reasonably safe from flooding. All procedures and regulations are hereby established by 60.3(d) 
Floodplain Management Ordinance #3551, passed, and adopted by the City of Salem on July 18, 
2023. See "Exhibit A". 

 
Section 3. 

 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances therefore enacted which are in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 
 

Section 4. 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and 
approval.  

 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI, AND 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR, THIS 14th   DAY OF NOVEMBER 2023. 

 
APPROVED: ATTEST: 

 
 
 

  

Greg Parker 
Mayor 

Tammy Koller 
City Clerk 
 

                                                                            
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

James K. Weber 
City Attorney 
 


	#3575-Floodplain Administrative Procedures.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES GUIDE FOR FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION FOR THE CITY OF SALEM, MISSOURI.
	The City of Salem, Missouri Floodplain Manager has developed this guide to establish the procedures for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program. All permits shall follow the policies and procedures set forth in this guide to ensure that a...
	That all ordinances or parts of ordinances therefore enacted which are in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.
	This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and approval.

	#3578-Industrial Park Street Naming.pdf
	BILL NO. 3578                                                                             ORDINANCE NO. 3578
	Greg Parker     Tammy Koller
	James Weber


	Resolution No. 42-2022 Change Order #1 501 S Hickory.pdf
	Greg Parker Tammy Koller
	Mayor City Clerk




